
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

January 23, 2024 (Hybrid Meeting) 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Commissioner Absence 

4. Communications  

5. Approve minutes of the January 9, 2024, Commissioner meeting 

6. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers: 200611-20680 $      476,552.29 
 Payroll Vouchers:  200593-200610 $      994,388.49 
  SUBTOTAL VOUCHERS: $   1,470,940.78   

 ACH Payroll Transfer: $   1,215,164.58 
 941 Payment – ACH Payroll Transfer $      274,984.20 
 Wire Transfer Fees $               80.00   
  SUBTOTAL PAYROLL ACH TRANSFERS: $   1,490,228.78 

 GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS AND ACH TRANSFERS:   $ 2,961,169.56 
 

7. Local 3390 Reports  

8. Chiefs Reports 

9. Standing Committee Reports 

10. Financial Report K. Hackmeister  

11. Chairman’s Report 

12. 2022 Bond Update 

13. OLD BUSINESS     
a.  
b.   
 

14. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 2024-01 Canceling Checks-Warrants  K. Hackmeister 
b.  

 

15. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

16. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

17. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS   
 

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be February 13, 2024, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
January 9, 2024 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Entze, Sutich and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. 
Oldenburg, T. Meyer, S. Booth, J. Johnson, J. Black, and EA T. VanderVaate.   
 
OATH OF OFFICE Chief Doan administered the Oath of Office for Alex Wilsie who was re-
elected in November 2023 to serve another term as Fire Commissioner.  

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Sutich and Entze moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioner Entze informed the Board he may be absent from the January 23, 2024 Board 
meeting.  Commissioner Wilsie informed the Board he will be absent from the January 23, 
2024 Board meeting. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Entze and Wilsie moved and seconded approval of the December 12, 2023 
meeting minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call 
vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Entze moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
200468-200592 for a total consideration of $593,340.51.  With no further discussion, the 
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Meyer reported: 
 Lieutenant Stark gave his Lahaina presentation to Gig Harbor Rotary on the morning of 

January 5.  Chief Meyer thanked Lieutenant Stark, for his willingness to present and for 
his willingness to deploy. 

 District operations will be conducting center hallway training at the Colvos Terrace 
apartments this week. 



 
Board of Commissioners 

01‐09‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
Chief Booth reported: 
 In December he met with shifts to gain feedback regarding the Drexel University Safety 

Culture Survey results.  He distributed the survey and results and compiled the feedback 
from shifts.  Areas of improvement primarily focus on communication and he feels the 
process was worthwhile.  

 
Chief Oldenburg reported: 
 The District issued seven (7) conditional offers to lateral candidates; their first day is 

anticipated to be February 12, 2024. 
  
Chief Doan reported: 
 The Legislative Committee of the Washington Fire Chiefs Association is trying to reduce 

impacts to fire districts from tax increment financing.  The Washington Council of 
Firefighters is making an effort to bring the Fire Marshall out from under the State Patrol.  
He will be attending the Washington Fire Chiefs Association Board meeting on January 
22 and Legislative Day in Olympia on January 23, 2024. 

 An issue regarding radio subscriber fees has arisen and may end up before the County 
Council.  Discussion followed. 

 SCBA equipment is starting to arrive. 
 The community meeting at Station 53 on Fox Island, January 6th had approximately 40 

attendees and went well.  Commissioners Nelson and Urvina also attended.  He continues 
to follow up on emails from community members. 

 District staff are working to close out the end of the year 2023.  Command and General 
Staff met today to discuss options for spending one-time use funds.  Will probably 
recommend a majority of the funds go to IT, Capital Facilities, and the rebuild of 50. 

 The District just had its 79th anniversary. 
 He will be on vacation next week. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Johnson advised the Board the bid process for Stations 53/57 went live yesterday and has 
already generated interest.  The training campus project will go out to bid in March.  Station 50 
design should come back soon.  Discussion followed.  
 
OLD BUSINESS  
A.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
A.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 



 
Board of Commissioners 

01‐09‐2024 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:28 pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00 pm on Tuesday, January 23, 2023. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
Commissioner 

 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200611 through 200642 191,663.13$              191,663.13$                        

191,663.13$              191,663.13$                        
 

191,663.13$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: January 9, 2024
APPROVED BY AC OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 1/10/2024













ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200643 through 200659 105,131.39$              105,131.39$                        

200660 through 200678 52,001.04$                52,001.04$                          

200679 through 200680 127,756.73$              127,756.73$                        

284,889.16$              284,889.16$                        

 

284,889.16$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: January 16, 2024

APPROVED BY KRYSTAL HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 1/17/2024





















PAYROLL: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 200593 through 200610 994,388.49$       994,388.49$        
(Benefit & L&I Monthly Payment)

1,215,164.58$    1,215,164.58$     
941 ACH Payroll Transfer Amount: 274,984.20$       274,984.20$        

Wire Fees Transfer Amount: 80.00$                80.00$                 

2,484,617.27$   GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL:

VOUCHER APPROVAL: January 8, 2024
APPROVED BY AC Oldenburg 

ACH Payroll Transfer Amount:







Pierce County Fire Protection District #5
Monthly Financial Dashboard Report
Nov‐2023 November 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES Amended Budget November YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Taxes 32,153,373             2,088,995     31,831,917   99.00% Expected

Intergovernmental 1,744,125               65,887          2,079,484     119.23% Expected

Charges for Service 1,674,399               198,140        2,068,946     123.56% Expected

Other/Non‐Revenue 142,135                  28,067          286,280        201.41% Expected

Transfers/BFB Carryover 1,175,243               ‐                 ‐                 0.00% Budget Amendment Items

Total Revenues: 36,889,275             2,381,088     36,266,628   98.31% Expected

OPERATING EXPENSES: Amended Budget November YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Salaries 22,983,970             2,006,783     20,029,953   87.1% Expected

Benefits 6,885,138               533,377        5,927,405     86.1% Expected

Supplies 1,959,898               99,690          1,319,394     67.3% Expected

Services 3,731,016               212,651        2,715,870     72.8% Expected

Capital Improvements 1,011,000               24,208          860,170        85.1% Expected

Debt Service ‐                           28,000          28,000           0.0% N/A

Transfers ‐                           ‐                 ‐                 0.0% N/A

Total Expenses:  36,571,022             2,904,709     30,880,793   84.4% Expected

EXPENSES BY DIVISION: Amended Budget November  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Legislative 381,694                  100,303        332,962        87.2% Expected

Finance & Admin 2,350,674               165,344        2,055,290     87.4% Expected

Operations 24,776,080             2,144,477     21,099,358   85.2% Expected

Logistics 6,631,065               323,915        5,209,856     78.6% Expected

Health & Safety 2,127,666               117,416        1,830,013     86.0% Expected

Capital/Bond 303,843                  53,255          353,313        116.3% Includes Temp Lease Expense

Total Expenses:  36,571,022             2,904,709     30,880,793   84.4% Expected

CAPITAL FUND (BOND): Amended Budget November  YTD  % of Budget Highlights: 

Project Management 501,343                  ‐                 13,055           2.6% Expected

Training Campus 8,005,845               13,427          1,170,768     14.6% Expected

Station 57 244,291                  5,851            200,952        82.3% Expected

Station 53 100,458                  5,618            178,916        178.1% Expected

Station 51 749,432                  44,706          139,999        18.7% Expected

Capital Equipment ‐                           5,058,615     5,124,763     0.0% Engine Purchase

Total Capital Projects: 9,601,369               5,128,216     6,828,454     71.1% Expected

ENDING CASH: 12/31/2022 11/30/2023 12/31/2021 Highlights: 

General Expense  12,624,848             16,747,093   11,941,200  

Reserve Fund 6,961,915               8,551,776     6,847,720    

Capital Fund* 50,139,722             45,679,931   ‐                 *Restricted use for eligible projects

Debt Fund (GO BOND) 143,711                  2,752,072     ‐                

PCSORT* 110,878                  97,051           134,772         *Restricted, GHFMO is Lead Agency 

Total: 69,981,074             73,827,923   18,923,692  



 

 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 
January 23, 2024 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 
to cancel municipal warrant(s) not received or lost by vendors and warrant(s) issued in error as follows:  
 
WHEREAS, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 issued the following check(s) and warrant(s) 
which were lost and/or not received by the vendor; and  

 

Warrant(s) Amount Check Date Vendor 

1714457 $4,825.54  11/7/2023 US Bank - Instant Card 

1712335 $715.64  10/24/2023 WA Water Service 

1705767  $236.88  9/5/2023 Grainger 

1696716 $198.00  6/27/2023 Jacob Huscroft 

1701166 $576.09  8/1/2023 Layton Randahl 

1690361 $164.90  5/16/2023 Chris Goodman 

3067 $45.00  7/27/2022 Grace Evenson 
 

WHEREAS, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 issued the following warrant(s) which were 
issued in error:  
 

Warrant(s) Amount Check Date Vendor 

2428 $988.24  12/1/2023 Martin/Kimberly Boyington 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. The above-listed warrants shall be canceled and the Pierce County Auditor shall transfer all 
records of these warrants so as to leave the funds as if such warrants had never been drawn. 
 

2. Said amount for the following checks and warrants shall be reissued by Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5 by and included in the following Voucher Nos below: 

Voucher/ Check Warrant(s) Amount Check Date Vendor 

2434  2428 $123.68  12/29/2023  Martin/Kimberly Boyington  

1719350  1714457 $4,825.54  11/7/2023  US Bank - Instant Card  

1719355  1712335 $715.64  10/24/2023  WA Water Service  

1719326  1705767 $236.88  9/5/2023  Grainger  

TBD 1696716 $198.00  6/27/2023  Jacob Huscroft  

1719341  1701166 $576.09  8/1/2023  Layton Randahl  

1719325  1690361 $164.90  5/16/2023  Chris Goodman  

3081  3067 $45.00  7/27/2022  Grace Evenson  
  



 

 

Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire District No. 5, 
this 23rd day of January, 2024. 
 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 

      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

Attest: 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Secretary 


	2024-01-23 AGENDA
	MINUTES Commissioner Mtg 01-09-2024
	Voucher Totals - 01.09.24
	Voucher Approvals - 01.09.24
	Voucher Totals - 01.16.24
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 01.16.24
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 13th Month - 01.16.24
	Voucher Approvals #3 - CAP13 - 01.16.24
	Voucher Totals - 01082024 Payroll
	Voucher Approvals - 01082024 Payroll
	11-2023 Monthly Financial Report_revised

